
 

 

Am bob ymholiad ynglŷn â’r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 27 Medi 2017 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Grŵp Tasg Tai Caerffili yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, 
Ystrad Mynach ar Dydd Iau, 5ed Hydref, 2017 am 5.30 pm.i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr 
agenda canlynol.  Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd 
o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar 
gais. 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Chris Burns 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO  
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
 

  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
  

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
 

  
 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 
a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 

 

To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Grwp Tasg Tai Caerffili ar 6ed Gorffennaf 2017. 

1 - 4  
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) sydd angen argymhelliad y Cabinet: -  
 
4  Adolygiad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru o'r Rhaglen SATC - Diweddariad llafar. 

  
 

I dderbyn a nodi yr eitem(au) gwybodaeth ganlynol:- 
 
5  Cwynion a Sylwadau - Cartrefi Caerffili. 

5 - 14  
 

*Os dymuna'r Aelod o Grŵp Gorchwyl Cartrefi Caerffili am yr adroddiad(au) wybodaeth uchod i gael eu 
dwyn ymlaen i'w trafod yn y cyfarfod, cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans ar 01443 864210, erbyn 10a.m. ar 
ddydd Mercher 4ydd Hydref 2017 
 
6  I dderbyn unrhyw geisiadau am eitem i'w gynnwys ar yr agenda nesaf sydd ar gael. 

  
 

 
Circulation: 
Aelodau'r Grŵp Gorchwyl:  Ms M. James, Ms R. Thompson, Mrs Y. Bryant, M. Davies, Miss E. Forehead, 
L. Harding, A. Hussey, Ms S. Jones, L. Phipps, Mrs D. Price, L.G. Whittle a Mr C. Davies,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 



 

 

 

 

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP 
(WELSH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARD) 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH 
(SIRHOWY ROOM) ON THURSDAY, 6TH JULY 2017 AT 5.00 P.M. 

 

 
Task Group Members: 

 
 Mrs Y. Bryant, M. Davies, Ms M. James, L. Harding, Mrs S. Jones, Mrs R. Thompson, 
 Mrs L Phipps and L. Whittle. 
 
 

Officers: 
 

F. Wilkins (Public Sector Housing Manager), S. Isaacs (Rents Manager), A. Hiscox (Older 
Persons Housing Manager) and C. Evans (Committee Services Officer) 
 
 

 CHAIR 
 
 In the absence of E. Forehead, it was moved and seconded that C. Davies be moved to the 

Chair for this meeting.  By a show of hands, this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Miss E. Forehead (Chair). 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Tenant Representatives Mrs Y. Bryant, C. Davies, Ms M. James, Mrs S. Jones and 

Mrs R. Thompson declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in all agenda items as 
Council Tenants. 

 
 
3. MINUTES – 16TH FEBRUARY 2017 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 16th February 2017 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 
4. REVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICE CHARGES. 
 
 The report, which was provided to Caerphilly Homes Task Group (The Task Group) on 

6th July 2017, sought the view of the Task Group on the review of how service charges are 
collected within Sheltered Housing and the need to review service charges for General Needs 
accommodation, prior to its presentation to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and 
Cabinet. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



 

 
 The Task Group noted that the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 imposed a new duty for local 

authorities to comply with standards for housing quality, rents and service charges.  Local 
Authorities are required to review the way in which charges for services are claimed to ensure 
that tenants are only charged for services that they receive.  Detailed guidance has not been 
provided but it is required that service charges fairly reflect costs incurred and be transparent 
with a detailed breakdown provided to tenants so they can see what they are paying for. 

 
 The Authority currently recovers its costs for services it provides to tenants in sheltered 

housing schemes by smoothing the cost of these services between all tenants within all of the 
schemes.  This is contrary to Welsh Government Policy.  It is proposed that, in future, the 
Authority recovers from tenants the actual cost of providing services in their individual 
scheme, based on the calculated cost of providing the services in the previous financial year. 

 
 Most general needs service charges are not currently de-pooled and was not considered in 

detail within the report, however, in order to comply with Welsh Government policy, a further 
report proposing the de-pooling of service charges for general needs tenants will be required. 

 
 The Task Group thanked the Officers for the report and raised queries in relation to the impact 

on tenants within Sheltered Housing Schemes and support for tenants.  Officers explained 
that there may be a financial impact on some tenants, dependent on the services provided 
within that particular complex; however a cap would be applied for a 2 year period, which 
would be subject to review.  Meetings have been conducted with tenants at all sheltered 
schemes to consult on the process, and further consultation and support would be provided, 
for example  through various communications and Income Maximisation assessments could 
be offered should tenants find affordability an issue.  Officers re-iterated that, with the 
introduction of Universal Credit and the proposal to change funding mechanisms for 
supported accommodation, providing a detailed breakdown of service charges will enable the 
Authority to give tenants detailed evidence on actual costs of services they receive, which will 
assist tenants in submitting claims for financial support in the future. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 

 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
 
(i) the proposal to charge tenants of sheltered housing schemes the actual costs 

of providing them with services per scheme be approved; 
 
(ii) the proposal to introduce transitional arrangements for two years, prior to 

review, and to cap service charges in line with the rent policy during the 
transitional period be approved; 

 
 
5. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 The Committee received and noted the following information items:- 
 

(1) Housing Revenue Account Outturn 2016/2017; 
(2) Well Being Objective WO5 – Investment in Council Homes to Transform Lives and 

Communities; 
(3) Year End Performance Report for Caerphilly Homes. 

 
 
  

Page 2



 

6. TO RECEIVE ANY REQUESTS FOR AN ITEM TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT 
AVAILABLE AGENDA 

 
1. A Task Group Member requested a report on Caerphilly Homes’ approach to Anti-

Social Behaviour across estates, with particular reference to the provision of housing 
to and monitoring of those who have previously committed anti-social behaviour. 

 
2. A Task Group Member requested a progress update on last year’s Procurement 

 Update Report. 
 
 
 The meeting closed at 6.30 p.m. 
 
 
 Approved as a correct record subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and recorded 

in the minutes of the meeting held on 21st September 2017. 
 
 

_______________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



 

 

 

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP – 5TH OCTOBER 2017 
 
SUBJECT: COMPLAINTS AND REPRESENTATIONS – CAERPHILLY HOMES 
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide information on contacts in relation to complaints and representations received by 

the Authority’s Housing Customer Services Section, from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The monitoring of complaints and representations is carried out to provide information on the 

level of satisfaction with the service provided by Caerphilly Homes.  The results enable 
Managers to focus on areas of concern with the aim of improving services and monitor 
performance and ensure that similar problems are avoided in the future.  The corporate 
complaints procedure places an emphasis on learning from complaints.  There have been 
examples of complaints which have led to changes in policies and procedures and these are 
explained in the report. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 Corporately, Complaints and Representations will link to the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Objectives 3 and 4, and also to themes in “Caerphilly Delivers”, the Local Service Board 
single integrated plan. 

 
3.2 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 sets out the following wellbeing goals which 

link with the aims of this report:- 
 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A globally responsible Wales 
 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The annual report is based on information collected during the financial year 1st April 2016 to 

31st March 2017.  Complaints received about the Housing Service are recorded and 
responded to in accordance with the Council’s 2 stage corporate complaints policy which was 
implemented in April 2013.  This was based on guidance issued by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales.  If, after following these 2 stages, the complainant is not satisfied with 
the outcome of their complaint they can progress their complaint to the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales.   

 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



4.2 Overall Numbers 
 
 In addition to recording Stage 1, Stage 2 and Ombudsman complaints, Caerphilly Homes 

Customer Services Section also records any service requests received directly by the 
Customer Services Section and any housing related correspondence received by the Chief 
Executive. In general, contacts recorded as service requests relate to the first time the service 
area has been made aware that there has been an issue in dealing with the matter 
concerned. Reasonable judgement is used, based on the information available at the time and 
these cases are often deemed to be ‘business as usual’ situations. However, if enquiries 
identify previous dealings on the same issue then the matter can be escalated through the 
complaints procedure. It is not necessary for the contact to specifically state that they want the 
issue dealt with as a  complaint as this would be determined from the detail of the contact and 
any previous dealings on the same subject.  

 
 Between 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017 the Customer Services Section of Caerphilly 

Homes recorded a total of 581 contacts from the public and/or their representative.  This is in 
comparison with 559 between 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016.  
 

 The table below details the contacts received by the Chief Executive and those recorded as 
service requests.  Details of Stage 1 and Stage 2 cases are in 4.5 and 4.6 

 

Function Area 
Chief Exec Service Request 

2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 

Response Repairs 16 12 93 95 

Housing Management 41 32 70 95 

Antisocial Behaviour 6 4 29 33 

Allocations 37 34 12 11 

Homelessness 1 4 2 4 

WHQS Internal 9 7 56 73 

Heating 0 0 6 10 

Sheltered Housing 8 3 3 5 

Grants 7 7 4 4 

WHQS External 4 1 16 28 

Rents 1 2 3 4 

Adaptations 3 1 4 1 

Energy Works 0 1 0 0 

Enforcement Action 0 1 1 1 

Planned Maintenance 0 0 2 0 

Leaseholder 1 4 1 0 

Other 1 1 1 1 

Housing Development 0 0 1 0 

Tenant Participation 0 0 0 0 

Private Landlord 3 0 0 1 

 
Total 138 114 304 366 

 
4.3 The number of contacts received via an advocate was 168 compared with 193 in 2015/16. 

Examples of the type of advocates used include MP, AM, Councillors, other tenants and 
family members. 

 
  

Page 6



4.4 Praise and Thanks 
 
 Records are also kept of any praise or thanks received by Caerphilly Homes. In 2016/17 there 

were 66 recorded.  This is in comparison with 78 for 2015/16.  These covered a number of 
service areas, as detailed below:- 

 

Praise or Thanks 
 

  2015/16 2016/17 

Rents 9 5 

Allocation 1 0 

Leaseholder Services 3 4 

Housing Management 14 7 

Responsive Repairs 24 21 

Tenancy Enforcement 2 2 

Tenant Participation 4 6 

Sheltered Housing 7 3 

WHQS 3 11 

Private Landlord 1 0 

Homelessness 1 0 

Adaptations 7 2 

Heating 1 3 

Handy Person Scheme 0 1 

Grants 1 1 

 
Total 

 
78 

 
66 

 
4.5 Stage 1 and Stage 2 Complaints 
 

Stage 1 of the complaints procedure offers the opportunity for the complaint to be resolved at 
the point of service delivery.  These complaints are referred to the appropriate service 
manager for any necessary action and response. If the complainant is not satisfied with the 
outcome at Stage 1 they are advised how the complaint can be progressed to Stage 2.  
Alternatively, complainants can request their complaint is escalated straight to a Stage 2 
investigation.  In addition, where an appeals procedure is in place this must be exhausted 
before progressing to a Stage 2 complaint.  Stage 2 complaints are investigated by the 
Customer Services Section, on behalf of the Head of Service or nominated Officer.   

 
There were 70 Stage 1 complaints recorded for Caerphilly Homes in 2016/17 compared with 
81 in 2015/16.  There were 31 Stage 2 complaints in 2016/17 compared with 36 in 2015/16.  
Of the 31 Stage 2 complaints received in 2016/17, 22 had progressed from a Stage 1 
complaint.  

 
As detailed in the table below the largest number of Stage 1 complaints (19) related to 
housing management issues. An analysis of the Stage 1 housing management complaints 
shows that they were in relation to a variety of aspects of the service including gardens, 
fencing, request for kitchen works, owner/occupier costs relating to chimney removal, transfer 
requests, re-let standard of properties, landlords consent, access to a garage and parking.  4 
of these cases were not resolved to the complainant’s satisfaction and progressed to Stage 2 
complaints.  

 
 The 16 response repair Stage 1 complaints were in relation to the general quality of service 

provision, the standard of work carried out and alleged delays in carrying out works. 6 of these 
cases were not resolved to the tenant’s satisfaction and progressed to a Stage 2.    

Page 7



 
 There were 14 Stage 1 complaints recorded for WHQS (internal works). An analysis of these 

complaints shows they related to a number of aspects including the standard of work carried 
out, delays, lack of communication, damage to possessions and decisions on works to be 
carried out. The majority of complaints were resolved at Stage 1 with 5 progressing to Stage 
2.   

 

Function Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Progressed 
 

2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 

Housing Management 25 19 26 8 9 4 

WHQS (Internal) 23 14 4 7 3 5 

Response Repairs 17 16 4 7 4 6 

Allocations 3 5 0 1 0 0 

Leaseholders 3 4 1 4 1 4 

Grants 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Anti-Social Behaviour 1 2 0 1 0 1 

Sheltered Housing 0 1 0 2 0 1 

WHQS (External) 5 8 1 1 1 1 

Rents 3 0 0 0 1 0 

 
Total 

 
81 

 
70 36 31 

 
19 

 
22 

 
 There were 8 Stage 2 complaints relating to the Housing Management function.  4 of these 

cases were in relation to recharges and the remaining cases related to fencing, a transfer 
application, re-let standard of a void property and landlord’s consent.  

 
 There were 7 WHQS (internal) Stage 2 complaints. 3 related to the general quality of service 

provided by the contractor, 1 was in relation to delay in starting works, 1 was due to lack of 
communication, 1 was in relation to a decision not to renew a kitchen and the remaining case 
related to lack of a response to an e-mail. 

 
 There were 7 Stage 2 complaints recorded for Response Repairs. 1 case was in relation to 

the delay in carrying out a roof repair, 1 case related to alleged damage to a gate by 
operatives carrying out a fence repair, I case was in relation to draughts and insulation in the 
property, 1 case related to alleged poor workmanship, 1 complaint was a request for cavity 
wall insulation to be replaced, 1 was a request for complete re-rendering and the final case 
was in relation to length of time tenant was without central heating. 

 
4.6 Outcome of Stage 1 and Stage 2 Complaints  
 
 The outcome of Stage 1 and Stage 2 complaints is recorded as not upheld, partially upheld or 

upheld. The table below shows the outcomes recorded for all Stage 1 and Stage 2 complaints 
recorded for 2016/17.  

 

 
Function Area 
 

 
Not Upheld 

 
Partially 
Upheld 

 
Upheld 

 
Did Not  
Proceed 

Stage 1 
 

Housing Management 12 4 1 2 

Response repairs 12 2 2 0 

WHQS (internal) 6 4 4 0 

WHQS (external) 3 4 1 0 

Allocations 3 0 2 0 

Leaseholders 3 1 0 0 

Sheltered 1 0 0 0 

Page 8



Grants 1 0 0 0 

Anti-Social Behaviour 2 0 0 0 

 
Total 

 
43 

 
15 

 
10 

 
2 

    
Stage 2 
 

 

Housing Management 5 1 2 0 

WHQS (internal) 0 3 4 0  

WHQS (external) 1 0 0 0 

Leaseholder 2 1 1 0  

Response repairs 5 1 1 0 

Sheltered 1 1 0 0 

Allocations 1 0 0 0 

ASB 1 0 0 0 

 
Total 

  
16  

 
7 

 
8 

 
0 

 
4.6.1 Stage 1’s  
 
 The service area identified with the greatest number of Stage 1 complaints upheld (4) and 

partially upheld (4) was the WHQS internal works.  2 of the upheld cases were resolved at 
Stage 1 with 2 cases progressing to Stage 2.  An analysis of these complaints as a whole 
shows that they related to the general organisation and delays in the completion of work 
provided by two of our external contractors.  Examples of the issues raised included the 
length of time tenants were without facilities, lack of communication and damage to tenants’ 
goods.  In each of these cases apologies were provided and the tenants were financially 
compensated.  

 
4.6.2 There were 2 response repair Stage 1 complaints upheld and 2 cases partially upheld.  All of 

these cases related to delays in undertaking a variety of works.  One of the upheld complaints 
related to a delay in carrying out follow up works after a radiator leak and the other upheld 
case related to a delay in carrying out fencing works.  One of the partially upheld cases 
related to a delay in repairing a central heating system, which subsequently progressed to a 
stage 2 complaint and the remaining case related to a delay in replacing windows. In each 
case an apology was provided and the necessary works were undertaken.  

 
4.6.3 There was 1 stage 1 complaint upheld in relation to a housing management issue.  This 

related to a tenant being unable to access his garage due to the lack of maintenance of the 
shrubs and bushes in the area.  An apology was provided and arrangements made for the 
area to be cleared.  There were 4 housing management stage 1 complaints partially upheld, 1 
involved a dispute over a garden boundary between an owner/occupier and a council property 
which was resolved through negotiation and the remaining 3 cases related to the condition of 
properties on re-let.  In 1 case officers have been reminded to ensure the re-let checklist is 
completed thoroughly and accurately, in another case officers have been reminded to ensure 
properties are cleaned to an acceptable standard.  The remaining case related to the 
condition of the plaster work on a bungalow allocated to older persons.  An additional 
decoration allowance was awarded and arrangements were made for the condition of the 
walls to be checked as part of the end of tenancy works on another void bungalow in that 
area.  

 
4.6.4 There was 1 WHQS (external) stage 1 complaint upheld and 4 complaints partially upheld.  

The upheld complaint was in relation to the unforeseen delay in carrying out WHQS works to 
a garden wall.  In order to complete the work, in a timely manner, arrangements were made 
for the repair to be carried out by the Housing Repair Operations team.  1 of the partially 
upheld cases related to a delay in carrying out works to a block of garages. An apology was 
provided and the works were carried out as soon as possible.  Another partially upheld 
complaint was in relation to damage caused to an owner/occupier’s chain link fence while 
contractors were renewing the fence next door.  An apology was provided and the necessary 

Page 9



repair was carried out.  The third case involved officers not returning calls to keep the tenant 
advised regarding a claim against the contractor.  An apology was provided and officers were 
reminded of the need to return calls in a timely manner.  The fourth case was in relation to the 
general standard of WHQS external works currently ongoing, lack of communication, debris 
left lying around and damage to green areas.  An apology was provided and an assurance 
given that the area would be regularly monitored and any damage would be assessed and 
made good by the contractor on completion of the works. 

 
4.6.5 There were 2 stage 1 complaints upheld for allocations.  The first case was in relation to a 

delay in assessing a special housing needs form issued to an applicant and the subsequent 
presentation of the case to the Rehousing Assessment Panel (RAP).  It was explained to the 
applicant that the delay was due to the workload of the Housing Occupational Therapist.  An 
apology was provided and the case presented to the next RAP panel.  The second complaint 
involved officers failing to recognise the importance of some of the information provided on a 
housing application form resulting in an initial inaccurate award of points. As soon as the 
errors were realised the points award was amended accordingly.  The Council and its landlord 
partners have since launched a Common Allocation Policy and Register with effect from 
5th December 2016 which is now based on a banding system.  This is operated by a 
centralised team of officers who have all received training on the new allocation procedure to 
ensure all applications are checked and recorded appropriately.   

 
4.6.6 The stage 1 complaint partially upheld for leaseholder services was in relation to a charge to 

the leaseholder for re-glazing works carried out by the Council.  Glazing is the leaseholder’s 
responsibility but due to some confusion the repair was raised for the Council to complete.  
The tenant disagreed with the charge as she claimed she had not been made aware she 
would be charged if the Council carried out the work. Due to a possible misunderstanding the 
charge was reduced by 50%.  The leaseholder was not satisfied with the outcome and the 
complaint progressed to a stage 2. 

 
4.6.7 Stage 2’s  
 
 The service area identified with the greatest number of stage 2 complaints upheld (4) and 

partially upheld (3) was the WHQS internal works.  2 of the upheld cases related to the 
general poor standard of work and service, provided by the contractor.  The issues highlighted 
included lack of communication, failure to supply temporary facilities and delays in the time 
taken to complete the works.  Apologies were provided and the works resolved to the tenants’ 
satisfaction. In addition, the Chief Housing Officer (CHO) met with the director of the 
contractors to review and amend their working practices.  1 of the cases related to the lack of 
response to a tenant’s e-mails. Some confusion had arisen as it was thought the e-mails had 
been responded to by a different department. A response was provided, together with an 
apology for the confusion.  The fourth complaint was in relation to a delay in completing a 
ceiling repair following a leak which occurred after bathroom works had been undertaken.  
The delay was due to officers awaiting the results of an asbestos test.  An apology was 
provided and the works were completed to the tenant’s satisfaction.  One of the partially 
upheld cases involved a review of the initial decision not to renew the kitchen under WHQS. 
Following the review partial improvements were agreed.  The second partially upheld case 
related to miscommunication regarding the extent of the WHQS works to be undertaken. An 
apology was provided and it was agreed that, in future, tenants should receive more detailed 
information confirming the works to be carried out.  Letters will therefore be re-formatted for 
the 2017/18 financial year to include details on the extent of works and confirming tenants’ 
choices, with tenants having 10 days to respond if they require any changes.  The third 
partially upheld case involved damage to a tenant’s bathroom flooring.  The tenant claimed a 
leak had occurred after WHQS works were undertaken and he had incurred a cost to replace 
the flooring. It was not possible to determine the cause of the leak but as a gesture of goodwill 
the tenant was reimbursed £60 to cover the cost of the replacement flooring. 

 
4.6.8 There were 2 stage 2 complaints upheld for housing management.  1 related to a recharge to 

a tenant which, following investigation, was later withdrawn.  The remaining case, which 
escalated from stage 1, was in relation to the standard of the property when it was re-let to a 

Page 10



new tenant. On further investigation it was agreed to award a further £48 decoration 
allowance in recognition of the unsatisfactory standard of cleanliness of the property. 

 
4.6.9 The 1 stage 2 complaint upheld for response repairs related to general poor workmanship and 

service from the housing repair operations team.  The issues complained about included 
repeat visits by operatives to complete a repair to the toilet, damage to items and poor 
communication between officers.  The Housing Repair Operations Manager visited the tenant 
to apologise for the service she had received and officers have been reminded to bring repeat 
repair enquiries to the attention of the senior planner.  The partially upheld case was in 
relation to a delay in repairing a tenant’s central heating system.  When the gas engineer 
attended he was not carrying the necessary part to repair the boiler.  The part could not be 
sourced immediately, as most merchants were closed for the Christmas period, so an order 
had to be placed.  The gas contractor has been reminded of the need to maintain 
appropriately stocked vehicles and, on this occasion, the contractor provided a £50 voucher 
as a goodwill gesture.  

 
4.6.10 The stage 2 complaint upheld for leaseholder services was in relation to a charge to the 

leaseholder for re-glazing works carried out by the Council as mentioned in 4.6.6 above.  The 
leaseholder was not satisfied with the stage 1 response. During the stage 2 investigation, 
confirmation was received of the substantial works to be undertaken, via WHQS, which will 
include full replacement of the windows.  As the leaseholder will be responsible for a large 
financial contribution towards these works it was felt, on this occasion, due to the possible 
misunderstanding the charge for the glazing would be withdrawn in full.  The partially upheld 
case related to a leaseholder who complained that the cavity wall insulation had been 
removed from his flat without prior notice.  An apology was provided for no notice being given. 

 
4.7 Ombudsman Complaints 
 
 There were 8 cases referred to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales after they had 

followed the Council’s corporate complaints procedure and 5 cases were referred 
prematurely, before following the Council’s corporate complaints procedure.  The 
Ombudsman did not investigate any of these cases. 

 
4.8 Response Target Times 
 
 The Customer Services Section monitors the performance in responding to all contacts 

recorded by the section, within the corporate timescales.  95% of complaints and 
representations were responded to within the agreed timescales in 2016/17 in comparison 
with 94% in 2015/16.    

 
4.9 Learning from Complaints 
 
 Complaints are used as a means of analysing the service provided by Caerphilly Homes and 

highlighting any areas for improvement or any necessary changes in existing policies and 
procedures.  The following are some examples of ‘lessons learned’ and the associated 
changes that have been made:  

 
4.9.1 We received a number of complaints regarding the overall quality of service and workmanship 

of a contractor carrying out WHQS works.  The issues raised included the planning of the 
works, the length of time taken to complete the works, lack of communication and being left 
without facilities whilst works were ongoing.  In order to improve the level of service the Chief 
Housing Officer met with the contractor to raise concerns about the quality of service and the 
failure to comply with the Charter for Trust.  The contractor has since reviewed it’s working 
practices and made some changes, including the appointment of additional supervisory staff, 
a tenant liaison officer and a new sub-contractor.  These changes continue to be monitored to 
ensure the required standards of performance are being delivered. 

 
4.9.2 A tenant who had recently been allocated a tenancy complained that he and his carer were 

being bitten by fleas.  This issue, however, was not identified by any of our workmen whilst 

Page 11



they were in the property undertaking the end of tenancy works.  As soon as the matter was 
brought to our attention arrangements were made for the property to be fumigated via the 
Council’s pest control officer and the tenancy start date was amended accordingly.  A week 
later the tenant complained that he was still being bitten so a further fumigation was arranged.  
The Housing Manager visited the property to apologise to the tenant and also confirmed that 
although the property had undergone a deep clean before allocation this was not to the 
expected standard.  However, this would not have addressed the issue of fleas.  A further 
clean was arranged.  Officers have been reminded to ensure vacant properties are checked to 
confirm they are cleaned to the expected standard before allocation.  

 
4.9.3 A tenant reported a fault of no central heating or hot water on 23rd December 2016 . She 

complained that the problem was not resolved for a week due to the delay in ordering parts. 
The investigation showed that the initial response by the gas engineer was within the required 
2 hour timeslot but the engineer was not carrying the necessary part to repair the boiler.  
There was then a delay in sourcing the part as most of the merchants were closed for the 
Christmas period.  There was then a further delay caused by the incorrect part being ordered. 
Temporary heating was provided in the meantime.  The repair was finally completed on 
30th December 2016 and the tenant was compensated in line with our heat loss compensation 
payment scheme.  As this was a relatively new contract the Housing Repair Operation 
Manager met with the contractor to remind them that all their vehicles should carry an 
appropriate level of stock, which should prevent the need for parts to be ordered. 

 
4.9.4 A tenant complained about the delay in WHQS works being carried out due to some confusion 

over an asbestos survey.  The tenant received a letter stating he had not allowed access for 
an asbestos survey so the works could not go ahead.  The letter also reminded him of his 
tenancy conditions concerning lack of access and the possibility of legal action for breach of 
tenancy if access was denied.  The tenant confirmed that access had, in fact, already been 
gained and the survey had been undertaken.  The tenant received a full apology for the 
confusion and the no access letter used by the WHQS team was reviewed and amended.  
The letter no longer refers to legal action being taken if access is denied but advises the 
tenant that any upgrading work will be delayed until the end of the programme in 2020. 

 
4.10 Recharge Panel 
 
 As mentioned in last year’s report, the independent Recharge Review Panel was established 

in July 2016, in order to deal with any appeals against recharges received since that time.  
The panel comprises Senior Housing Officers, a Councillor and a Tenant and is seen as a 
more consistent approach to dealing with such matters. During the period July 2016 to 
31st March 2017 the panel has reviewed 4 recharge appeals and in each case the 
recommendation to the Chief Housing Officer was that the recharge should remain.  

 
 
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Any complaints received by Caerphilly Homes that contain alleged discriminatory aspects to 

them are dealt with jointly by Caerphilly Homes and the Equalities and Welsh Language Team 
to ensure that the allegations are investigated thoroughly and appropriately, in line with both 
the complaints process and the requirements of the Strategic Equality Plan and Welsh 
Language Scheme 

 
 
6. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
6.1 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above. It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act in that: 

 

 Long Term – to improve the delivery of the housing service to tenants 
 

Page 12



 Prevention – learning lessons from complaints to prevent repeated problems. 
 

 Integration – process for housing complaints integrated with the corporate complaints and 
information unit processes.  Corporate process follows the framework laid down by the 
public services ombudsman.    

 

 Collaboration –Participation in all wales complaints working group to share good practice. 
 

 Involvement – annual report to Caerphilly Homes Task Group. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 None. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATION 
 
9.1 Consultation responses have been considered within this report. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 This report is for information purposes only. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 The monitoring of complaints forms part of the process to monitor performance and 

continuous improvement for Caerphilly Homes. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER 
 
12.1 Local Government and Housing Acts.  This is a Cabinet function. 
 
 
Author: Janet Carter, Senior Housing Officer, Customer Services Ext 5372 
 e-mail  cartej1@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Corporate Director of Communities 
 Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Homes and Places 
 Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer 
 Fiona Wilkins, Public Sector Housing Manager 

Kenyon Williams, Private Sector Housing Manager 
 Paul Smythe, Housing Repair Operation Manager 
 Marcus Lloyd, Deputy Head of Programmes 
 Jane Roberts-Waite, Housing Strategic Co-ordination Manager 

Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
 Mandy Betts, Tenant and Community Involvement Manager 
 Gemma Hoare, Housing Officer, Customer Services 
 Anwen Rees, Senior Policy Officer, Equalities and Welsh Language 
 

Page 13

mailto:cartej1@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Grwp Tasg Tai Caerffili ar 6ed Gorffennaf 2017.
	5 Cwynion a Sylwadau - Cartrefi Caerffili.

